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UNITED STATES
ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGIONllI
1650 Arch Street

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103

General Dynamics Orllnance and
Tactical Systems, I*c.

11399 16th Court N01h
Suite 200
St. Petersburg, Floridf 33716

REspokDENT.

General Dynamics I rdnance and
Tactical Syste s, Inc.

200 E. High Street

Docket No. RCRA-03-2010-0326

Proceeding Under Section
3008(a) and (g) of the
Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act, as amended,
42 U.S.c. § 6928(a) and (g)

FACILIifY.

)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)
)

Red Lion, Pennsyl ania 17356-0127 )
RCRA Identificati n # PAD069779627 )

)
)

In Re:

CONSENT AGREEMENT

l.

2.

I I. PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

This Consent Agreement is entered into by the Director of the Land and Chemicals
Division, U.S. ~nvironmental Protection Agency, Region III ("Complainant"), and
General Dynamics Ordnance and Tactical Systems, Inc. ("'Respondent"), pursuant to
Section 3008(a~and (g) of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, commonly known as Resoun:e
Conservation an Recovery Act of 1976, as amended by inter alia, the Hazardous and
Solid Waste A endments of 1984 (collectively referred to hereinafter as "RCRA"), 4=
U.S.C. § 6928(aD and (g), and the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the
Administrative Assessment of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or
Suspension ofPtrmits ("Consolidated Rules o/Practice"), 40 C.F.R. Part 22, including,
specifically, 40 f"F.R. §§ 22. 13(b) and 22. 18(b)(2) and (3).

The Consolidat4d Rules o/Practice, at 40 C.F.R. § 22.13(b), provide, in pertinent part.
that where the parties agree to settlement of one or more causes of action before the fil ng
of a complaint, ~ proceeding simultaneously may be commenced and concluded by the
issuance ofa cotsent agreement and final order pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 22. 18(b)(2) anj
(3). Pursuant thereto, this Consent Agreement ("CA") and the accompanying Final Oder
("FO", collectivbly referred to herein as the "CAFO") simultaneously commence and
conclude this adbinistrative proceeding against Respondent.
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3. The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania has received federal authorization to administer"
Hazardous Was~e Management Program (the "Pennsylvania Hazardous Waste
Management PrJJgram") in lieu of the federal hazardous waste management program
established und~lr RCRA Subtitle C, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6921-693ge. Effective January 30,
1986, the Com onwealth of Pennsylvania Hazardous Waste Regulations ("PaHWR")
were authorized by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency ("EPA" or the "Agenc)")
pursuant to SectJOn 3006(b) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6926(b), and 40 C.F.R. Part 271,
Subpart A. The IpaHWR subsequently were revised, and thereafter re-authorized by EI'A,
on three separate occasions (September 26,2000, January 20. 2004 and April 29, 2009).
Such authorizedl~evisedPaHWR requirements and provisions became effective on
November 27, 2pOO, March 22, 2004 and June 29, 2009, respectively. The provisions of
Pennsylvania's ~urrent authorized revised PaHWR, codified at 25 Pa. Code Chapters
260a-266a, 2661'1, and 268a-270a, have thereby become requirements ofRCRA Subtitl~ C
and are enforcdble by EPA pursuant to RCRA § 3008(a), 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a).

The factual allelations and legal conclusions in this CA are based on provisions of the
PaHWR in effe t at the time of the violations alleged herein. The PaHWR incorporate~,by
reference certai federal hazardous waste management regulations that were in effect as
of May I, 1999 ~and as of July 6, 1999 for certain regulations regarding Universal Wa~'te)
for the November 27, 2000 PaHWR authorization, June 28, 2001 for the March 22, 20')4
PaHWR authoribtion and October 12,2005 for the April 29, 2009 PaHWR
authorization.

5.

6.

7.

8.

Section 3008(g) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(g), authorizes the assessment ofa civil
penalty against ny person who violates any requirement of Subtitle C of RCRA.
Respondent is hyreby notified of EPA's determination that Respondent has violated
RCRA Subtitle~,42 U.S.C. §§ 6921-693ge, and federally-authorized PaHWR
requirements, at its facility located at 200 E, High Street, Red Lion, Pennsylvania 173:-6­
0127.

In accordance WIth Section 3008(a)(2) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a)(2), and by writkn
letter dated Febrfary 25, 2010, EPA notified the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,
through the Pelllflsylvania Department of Environmental Protection ("PaDEP" or the
"Department"), <'>fEPA's intent to commence this administrative action against
Respondent in rfsponse to the violations of RCRA Subtitle C that are alleged herein.

J
II. GENERAL PROVISIONS

Respondent ad its the jurisdictional allegations set forth in this CAFO.

Respondent neitLr admits nor denies the factual allegations or legal conclusions
contained in this CAFO, except as provided in Paragraph 7, immediately above.

2



10.

II.

13.

12.

14.
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9. Respondent agr es not to contest EPA's jurisdiction with respect to the execution Of~iS
Consent Agreement, the issuance of the attached Final Order, or the enforcement of thi:
CAFO. I

For the purpose~ of this proceeding only, Respondent hereby expressly waives its right to
contest the alleg~tions set forth in this Consent Agreement and any right to appeal the
accompanying Tnal Order.

Respondent consents to the issuance of this CAFO and agrees to comply with its tenm
and conditions. I

Respondent shajl bear its own costs and attorney's fees.

The provisions f this CAFO shall be binding upon Complainant and Respondent, its
officers, directo~s, employees, successors and assigns.

This CAFO shal~ not relieve Respondent of its obligation to comply with all applicabl!'
provisions of fe4eral, state or local law, nor shall it be construed to be a ruling on, or I

determination 0], any issue related to any federal, state or local permit; nor does this
CAFO constitut6 a waiver, suspension or modification of the requirements of RCRA
Subtitle C, 42 U S.C. §§ 6921-693ge, or any regulations promulgated and/or authorize;}
thereunder. I

15.

III. EPA FINDINGS OF FACT AND CONCLUSIONS OF LAW

In accordance Jth the Consolidated Rules ofPractice at 40 C.F.R. §§ 22. 13(b) and
22.18(b)(2) and (3), Complainant makes the following findings of fact and conclusiom of
law:

16.

17.

18.

19.

Respondent is a rirginia corporation headquartered in St. Petersburg, Florida.

Respondent is emgaged in the manufacture of large and medium-caliber ordnance I

projectiles, houstngs and parts for the military at its facility located at 200 E. High Stn:et,
Red Lion, pennlYlvania 17356-0127 (hereinafter, the "Facility").

Respondent is a 'person" as that term is defined in Section 1004(15) of RCRA, 42 V.S.c.
Section 6903(15D, 40 C.F.R. § 260.10 and 25 PA Code Section 260a.lO.

The Facility ide~ltified in Paragraph 17, above, and further described below, is a
hazardous waste storage "facility" as that term is defined in 40 C.F .R. § 260.10 and 25
PA Code Sectio 260a.lO.
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20. Respondent is ahd, at all times relevant to this CAFO, was the "owner" and "operator"ll of
a/acUity (i.e., t~e Facility), where the Respondent engaged in hazardous waste
management act~vities, as these terms are defined in 40 C.F.R. § 260.10 and incorporated
by reference in 15 Pa. Code § 260a.l, and as defined in 25 Pa. Code § 260a.l O. I

21. As described below, Respondent is and, at all times relevant to this CAFO has been, a I

"generator" of "I'solid waste" and "hazardous waste" (including hazardous waste having
EPA Hazardous Waste Numbers D001, D002, D007, D008, D035, F003, F005, F006, las
specified in 40 a.F.R. §§ 261.21, 261.22, 261.23 and 261.31, and incorporated by I
reference in 25 tao Code § 26Ia.I), at the Facility, as these terms are defined in 40 C.FI.R.
§ 260.10, as inc@rporated by reference in 25 Pa. Code § 260a.l.

22. At all times rele~ant to this CAFO, and as described below, Respondent has engaged iiI
the "storage" ofCsolid waste" and "hazardous waste" in "container[s)" at the Facility, its
the former term is defined in 25 PA Code Section 260a.1 0 and as the latter terms are
defined in 40 c.F.R. § 260.10, as incorporated by reference in 25 Pa. Code § 260a.1.

23.

24.

25.

26.

27.

28.

Respondent has submitted to EPA a Notification of Hazardous Waste Activity I

("Notification") pursuant to Section 3010 of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6930, for its operaticns
at the Facility d in which Respondent has identified itself as a large quantity generatbr
of hazardous w teo

On September 9l2009, a duly authorized representative of EPA conducted a complian,;e
evaluation insP~Etion (the "CEl") at the Facility to assess the Respondent's complianc::
with federally arhorized PaHWR requirements.

On January 26, :2010, pursuant to the authority ofRCRA § 3007(a), 42 U.S.c. § 6927(1),
I

EPA sent an inftrmation request letter ("IRL") to the Facility seeking additional
information reg<jrding Respondent's hazardous waste generation and management
practices at the Iacility and requesting the production of specified documents and
information.

Respondent replied to EPA's IRL by correspondence dated February 15,2010.

On May 17,2010, EPA sent a Notice ofNoncompJiance and Request to Show Cause
letter ("NON") t the Respondent advising Respondent of EPA's preliminary findings of
PaHWR violati ns at the Facility and offering the Respondent an opportunity to provi<lle
such additional'nformation as it believed the Agency should review and consider befdre
reaching any finrl conclusions as to the Respondent's PaHWR compliance at the Facil!ity.

In response to tHe NON, Respondent provided EPA with supplemental information by
correspondence ated May 27, 2010. EPA reviewed and considered such supplemental
information and advised Respondent's representatives of its acceptance of the same

4
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during a meeting of the parties held on June 7, 20 IO.

On the basis of vle CEl and a review of the supplemental information provided to EP j'j by
Respondent in rbsponse to the NON, EPA concludes that Respondent has violated certllin
requirements ani provisions ofRCRA Subtitle C, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6921-693ge, and
federally author zed PaHWR requirements promulgated thereunder.

COUNT I
(Operating Without a Permit)

30. The allegations of Paragraphs I through 29 of this Consent Agreement are incorporate!i
herein by refere ~ce as though fully set forth at length.

A licable Statuto Re uirements & Factual Findin s

31.

32.

33.

Pursuant to Secfon 3005(a) and (e) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6925(a) and (e), and 40 C.F1.R.
§ 270.1 (b), as in orporated by reference into 25 Pa. Code § 270a.l, no person may own or
operate a facilit)( for the treatment, storage or disposal of hazardous waste without firsj,
obtaining a pelit or interim status for such facility.

At all times releyant hereto, Respondent did not have a permit, pursuant to Section
3005(a) of RCM, 42 U.S.C. § 6925(a), or 40 C.F.R. Part 270, as incorporated by
reference into 25 Pa. Code § 270a.l, for the storage of hazardous waste at the Facility,
and did not hav~ interim status pursuant to Section 3005(e) of RCRA, 42 U.S.c.
§ 6925(e), or 40IC.F.R. § 270.70, as incorporated by reference into 25 Pa. Code § 270l,.1.

Applicable Regulatory Permit Exemption Conditions -
I Accumulation Time & General Requirements

Pursuant to 40 },.F.R. § 262.34(a), as incorporated by reference in 25 Pa. Code
§ 262a.lO, and ith exceptions not herein applicable, "a generator may accumulate
hazardous wast· on-site for 90 days or less without a permit or without having interim
status" so long s the hazardous waste is stored in accordance with a number of
conditions set f1rth in that section, including, inter alia:

a. the condition set forth at 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(l)(i), which provides, in pertim,nt
part and ~I ith exceptions not herein applicable, that: "( I) The waste is placed: (',)
In contai ers and the generator complies with the applicable requirements of
Subparts I ... of 40 C.F.R. Part 265... ";

b. the condltion set forth at 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(2), which requires, in pertinent
part and I, ith exceptions not herein applicable, that: "(2) the date upon which each
period 0 accumulation begins is clearly marked and visible for inspection on dach
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d,

c.

35.

34.
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container'"
I '

the condltion set forth at 40 C.F,R, § 262,34(a)(3), which requires, in pertinent I

part and rith exceptions not herein applicable, that: "(3) While being accurnul!tted
on-site, ~ach container and tank is labeled or marked clearly with the words I

"Hazardc,us Waste'" and

the condtion set fO~h at 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a)(4), which requires, in pertinent
part, thatl: "(4) The generator complies with the requirements for owners and
operator, in Subpart[] C , , . in 40 C.F.R, Part 265 , , , ."

A limble Re "lato Permit Exem tion Conditions ­
Mana/:ement and Inspection ofContainers

Subpart I of 40 J.F.R. Part 265 includes the provisions of 40 C.F.R. § 265. I73(a), Whith
pertain to the mJnagement of containers and require that: "[a] container holding \
hazardous waste] must always be kept closed during storage, except when it is necessaJ"]{
to add or remov, waste," I

I

Subpart I of 40 q.F.R. Part 265 additionally includes the provisions of 40 C.F.R.
§ 265.174, whi4 pertain to the inspection of containers and require, in relevant part, I

that: "[a]t least weekly, the owner or operator must inspect areas where containers are
stored ... , TheJowner or operator must look for leaking containers and for deteriorati(!m
of containers ca sed by corrosion or other factors,"

36,

37,

38.

A licable Re "lato Permit Exem tion Conditions -
'I Maintenance and Operation ofFacilitv

Subpart C of 40 b.F.R. Part 265 includes the provisions of 40 C.F.R. § 265,31, which
pertain to the m~intenance and operation of a facility and require. in relevant part, that:
"[f]acilities mus~ be maintained and operated to minimize the possibility of ... any
unplanned suddeh or non-sudden release of hazardous waste or hazardous waste
constituents to aif' soil, or surface water which could threaten human health or the
environment." I

lfactual Findin/:s - Permit R-.:emption Conditions

A drum OfOOOl10007/0008/F003/F005 hazardous waste that was shipped off-site under
Manifest # 2909~02FLE ( line item 9.b.I) was stored at the Facility from June 10, 200b
through septemlr 10,2009, a period of 93 days.

At the time of the September 9, 2009 CEI, each of several small containers of solid and
hazardous waste 'Lab Pack Material" containing 0002 adhesive hardener, 0002 epoxy

6



39.

40.

43.

42.

41.

In Re: General Dynamics O~dnance and Tactical Systems, Inc. Consent Agree"lent

EPA Facility I.D. #PAD069179627 Docket No. RCRA-03-20I0-1316

resins and 000 I 0035 adhesives and primers, as well as a 55 gallon container of solid
and 0001 hazar ous waste spent "Solvent 100", were in storage at the Facility and we!e
not labeled or m~rked clearly with the words "Hazardous Waste".

At the time ofth~ September 9, 2009 CEl, each of the containers of hazardous waste
identified in Parfgraph 38, immediately above, as well as a two open carts containing
F006 hazardous r'aste sludge that were located beneath a sludge press in the Facility's
Building I Wastfwater Treatment Plant and near a sludge dryer in the Facility's Building
3 Wastewater TrFatment Plant, respectively, were not marked with the date upon whictil
the period of haLJardous waste accumulation began.

At the time ofth~ September 9, 2009 CEI, each of the two open carts containing F006
hazardous waste sludge identified in Paragraph 39, immediately above, as well as a
partially open 2~~yard roll-off container containing F006 hazardous waste from the
Facility Wastewfter Treatment Plant that was in a storage area adjacent to the Facility';
main AccumUJat~.on Area, were not kept closed during storage at times when it was not
necessary to add or remove waste.

Respondent faile to inspect the hazardous waste container storage areas located within
~~eo~~cility Accimulation Area on a weekly basis from May 7, 2009 through June 4,

At the time oftht September 9, 2009 CET, F006 hazardous waste sludge residue was
present on and aJ[ound the base of a sludge dryer located within, and also on the floor of,
the Facility's Buliding 3 Wastewater Treatment Plant, such that the Facility was not J
properly maintaihed and operated to minimize the possibility of an unplanned sudden r
non-sudden releise of hazardous waste or hazardous waste constituents to air or soil.

Legal Conclusion - Failure to Comply with Permit Exemption Conditions

For each of the Jasons and during each of the times set forth in Paragraphs 37 through
42, above, ReSP~dndent failed to comply with the conditions, identified in Paragraphs 3;;
through 36, abo , for temporary (i.e., 90 days or less) accumulation of hazardous wast1e
by a generator th t are required pursuant to 40 C.F.R. § 262.34(a), as incorporated by
reference in 25 PA Code Section 262a.1 0, and therefore failed to qualifY during those
tim~s for an exejption from the permitting/interim status requirements provided by sm;h
sectIOn.

Legal Conclusion - Operating without a Permit.
Interim Status or Valid Permit Exemption

44. Respondent viol ted 25 Pa. Code § 270a.l, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R.
§ 270.1 (b), and ection 3005(a) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. § 6925(a), by operating a hazard us
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waste storage fa ility without a pennit, interim status or valid exemption to the
pennitting/interib status requirements.

45.

46.

47.

48.

49.

50.

51.

52.

COUNT II
(]ailUre to Make Hazardous Waste Determinations)

The allegations f paragraphs I through 44 of this CA are incorporated herein by
reference as thOigh fully set forth at length.

25 PA Code se~ ion 262a.10 incorporates by reference the requirements of 40 C.F.R.
§ 262.11, which provides, in relevant part, that: "[a] person who generates a solid wastl~'

as defined in 40 CFR 261.2, must determine if that waste is a hazardous waste using tHe
following meth d: (a) He should first detennine if the waste is excluded from regulatid.n
under 40 CFR 261.4[; and] (b) He must then detennine if the waste is listed as a
hazardous wastj in subpart 0 of 40 CFR part 261."

At the time oft e September 9,2009 CEI, Respondent had not detennined if the "Lab
Pack Material" fd the spent "Solvent 100" solid wastes previously identified in
Paragraph 38, a]ove, were hazardous wastes.

In its February 15,2010 IRL response. Respondent infonned EPA of its subsequent
determination t at the "Lab Pack Material" waste referenced in Paragraphs 38 and 47,
above, included 10002 adhesive hardener, 0002 epoxy resins and 000110035 adhesiv oS

and primers, respectively, and that the spent "Solvent 100" waste also referenced in
Paragraphs 38 ahd 47, above, was a 0001 hazardous waste.

From the date Jgeneration through October 1,2009, Respondent failed to detennine If
the solid wastes lidentified in Paragraph 47, above, were hazardous wastes in accordano:e
with 25 PA COdi Section 262a.1 0, which incorporates by reference the requirements a!nd
provisions of 40 C.F.R. § 262.11.

COUNT III
(Failure to COjply with Hazardous Waste Exception Reporting Requirements)

The allegations bf paragraphs I through 49 of this CA are incorporated herein by
reference as tho~gh fully set forth at length.

25 PA Code sedtion 260aJ.(a)(I) provides that tenns including "Regional
Administrator" L-e "substituted with "Department"."

25 PA Code Se tion 262a.1 0 incorporates by reference the recordkeeping requirement" of
40 C.F.R. § 262 40(a), which provide that: "[a] generator must keep a copy of each
manifest signed in accordance with [40 C.F.R.] § 262.23(a) for three years or until he

8



53.

55.

56.

57.

54.
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receives a signe copy from the designated facility which received the waste. This sigbled
copy must be re+ined as a record for at least three years from the date the waste was
accepted by the Initial transporter."

25 PA Code seiion 262a.1 0 incorporates by reference the exception reporting
recordkeeping r quirements of 40 C.F.R. § 262.42(a)(2), as modified by 25 PA Code
Section 260a.3.( )(1) and by 25 PA Code Section 262a.42 (which does not incorporate by
reference the prufase "for the Region in which the generator is located" that is containe~l in
40 C.F.R. § 262.~2(a)(2)), and collectively provide that a generator of greater than IOor
kilograms of ha~ardouswaste in a calendar month must submit an Exception Report to
the Department jf he has not received a copy of the manifest with the handwritten
signature of the bwner or operator of the designated facility within 45 days of the datel:he
waste was accePfed by the initial transporter.

At the time Ofth~ September 9, 2009 eEl, the copy of Hazardous Waste Manifest No.
206521 (signed \:>y the initial transporters of such waste on December 11. 2008)
maintained by tHe Respondent at the Facility did not include the handwritten signature of
the owner or opdrator of the facility designated to receive the hazardous waste.

On September ll, 2009, a Facility representative submitted a fully signed copy of
Hazardous wasf Manifest No. 206521 that included the handwritten signature of the
owner or operat I r of the facility designated to receive the hazardous waste.

In its May 27, 2(1)10 IRL Response, Respondent confirmed that the Facility initially di
not receive a fuJiy signed copy of Hazardous Waste Manifest No. 206521 that included
the handwritten kignature of the owner or operator of the facility designated to receive Ihe
hazardous wastel, but that "a copy of that manifest subsequently was obtained and ...

submitted ..." 'j
Respondent fail d to comply with 25 PA Code Section 262a. IO. which incorporates b
reference (and ~Iith the modifications noted at 25 PA Code Sections 260a.3.(a)(I) and
262a.42) the exc ption reporting requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 262.42(a)(2), by failing t,
submit an Exce tion Report to the Department upon failing, within 45 days of the date
the waste was a cepted by the initial transporter, to receive a copy of Hazardous Wast
Manifest No. 20

1

521 that contained the handwritten signature of the owner or operato of
the designated facility.

58.

COUNT IV
(Failure to comR1'Y with Hazardous Waste Container Management Requirements)

The allegations f paragraphs I through 57 of this CA are incorporated herein by
reference as thoJgh fully set forth at length.
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59.

60.

61.

25 PA Code Sec~ion 264a.l, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.173(a),
provides, in releyant part and with exceptions not herein applicable, that "[a] container
holding hazardous waste must always be kept closed during storage, except when it is
necessary to add or remove waste."

On September 9. 2009, each of the three containers of hazardous waste identified in
Paragraph 40, aBove, were being stored at the Facility and were not kept closed at time
when it was nOtf'ecessary to add or remove waste.

Respondent fail d to comply with the requirements of 25 Pa. Code § 264a.I, which
incorporates by eference the requirements of 40 C.F .R. § 264.173(a), by storing
hazardous waste in containers that were not kept closed during storage, when it was no
necessary to add or remove waste.

COUNT V
(Failure to Comply ith Weekly Hazardous Waste Container Storage Area Inspections)

62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

67.

The allegations @fparagraphs I through 61 of this CA are incorporated herein by
reference as tho~gh fully set forth at length.

25 PA Code sec1ion 264a.l, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.174,
provides, in rele I ant part and with exceptions not herein applicable, that "[a]t least
weekly, the own r or operator must inspect areas where containers are stored .... Th
owner or operat r must look for leaking containers and for deterioration of containers lnd
the containment ystem caused by corrosion or other factors."

Respondent fail d to inspect the hazardous waste container storage areas located within
~~eo~acility Accllmulation Area on a weekly basis from May 7, 2009 through June 4,

Respondent fail~d to comply with the requirements of 25 Pa. Code § 264a.I, which
incorporates by neference the requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 264.174, by failing to perfo ,n
required weekly bontainer storage area inspections at the Facility Accumulation Area
during the periods of May 7, 2009 through June 4, 2009.

t
l COUNT VI

(Failure to omply with Facility Design and Operation Requirements)

The allegations f paragraphs 1 through 65 of this CA are incorporated herein by
reference as th01gh fully set forth at length.

25 PA Code Section 264a.l, which incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 264.31,
provides, in rele ant part, that "[fJacilities must be designed, constructed, maintained Id
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EPA Facility J.D. #PAD069'v79627 Docket No. RCRA-03-2010- 26

operated to mini~ize the possibility of ... any unplanned sudden or non-sudden releas
of hazardous waste or hazardous waste constituents to air, soil, or surface water which
could threaten hiliman health or the environment."

68. At the time Ofth
l

September 9, 2009 CEI, Respondent operated the Facility's Buildin .3
Wastewater Trekment Plant in a manner that allowed hazardous waste sludge residue 0

Ibe released on an.d around the base of the sludge dryer and onto the floor.

69.

70.

71.

72.

73.

74.

Respondent faild to comply with the requirements of 25 Pa. Code § 264a.l, which
incorporates by eference the requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 264.31, by operating the
Facility's Buildi g 3 Wastewater Treatment Plant in a manner that failed to minimize t e
possibility of an unplanned sudden or non-sudden release of hazardous waste or
hazardous waste constituents to air, soil, or surface water which could threaten human
health or the emj'ronment.

COUNT VII
(Failur to Keep Universal Waste Lamps in Closed Containers)

~;:,:~:;::"~*:~~r,;~~::~~~:""hi"CA~, hiooq><>m"'" h,re'. by

25 PA Code Section 266b.1 incorporates by reference the requirements of 40 C.F.R.
§ 273.1 3(d)(1 ), thich provides that "[aJ small quantity handler of universal waste mus
contain any lamll in containers or packages that are structurally sound, adequate to
prevent breakag , and compatible with the contents of the lamps. Such containers and

could cause leakkge under reasonably foreseeable conditions."

At the time OftJ September 9, 2009 CEI, Respondent was a small quantity handler of
universal waste td was storing universal waste lamps at Facility Building 4 in cardboId
box containers t lat were not fully closed.

Respondent faile~ to comply with the requirements of 25 PA Code Section 266b.l, wh ch
incorporates by Ifference the requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 273 .13(d)(I), by storing
universal waste lamps at the Facility in containers that were not fully closed.

1 COUNT VIII
(Failure to JroperlY LabellMark Containers ofUniversal Waste Lamps)

The allegations f paragraphs I through 69 of this CA are incorporated herein by
reference as tho gh fully set forth at length.

11



77.

76.

In Re: General Dynamics ~rdnance and Tactical Systems, Inc. Consent Agree lent
EPA Facility I.D. #PAD06 1779627 Docket No. RCRA-03-2010- 326

75. 25 PA Code seiion 266b.1 incorporates by reference 40 C.F.R. § 273.14(e), pertainin
to universal was e lamp labeling or marking requirements. These provisions require tat:
"[e]ach lamp or container or package in which such lamps are contained must be
labeled or mark ,d clearly with one of the following phrases: "Universal
Waste-Lamp(s~,"or "Waste Lamp(s)," or "Used Lamp(s)."

At the time Oft~ September 9, 2009 CEI, Respondent was storing containers of
universal waste lamps at Facility Building 4 in metal and cardboard containers that ha
Universal Wastellabels on them, but which were not correctly labeled or marked with ne
of the required ahd applicable phrases (i.e., "Universal Waste-Lamp(s)," or "Waste
Lamp(s)," or "U~ed Lamp(s)").

Respondent failJd to comply with the requirements of25 PA Code Section 266b.l, w ch
incorporates by reference the requirements of 40 C.F.R. § 273.14(e). by failing to labe or
mark containers funiversal waste lamps in storage at the Facility with one of the
specified and re uired phrases.

IV, CIVIL PENALTIES

78. Respondent agre~s to pay a civil penalty in the amount ofThirty Eight Thousand Fi e
Hundred Dollars ($38,500.00), in settlement and satisfaction of all civil claims for
penalties which omplainant may have concerning the violations alleged and set forth n
Section III ("EP Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law") of this CA. Such civil
penalty shall be me due and payable immediately upon Respondent's receipt of a tru
and correct copy of the CAFO. In order to avoid the assessment of interest,
administrative costs and late payment penalties in connection with such civil penalty,
Respondent mus} pay such civil penalty no later than thirty (30) calendar days after the
date on which thIS CAFO is mailed or hand-delivered to Respondent.

79. The civil penaltyl settlement amount set forth in the preceding Paragraph was deterrnin d
after consideration of the statutory factors set forth in Section 3008(a) of RCRA, 42
U.S.C. § 6928(a~, which include the seriousness ofthe violation and any good faith
efforts to compl~ with the applicable requirements. These factors were applied to the
particular facts and circumstances ofthis case with specific reference to: EPA's Octob ,
1990 RCRA Civil Penalty Policy, as revised in June, 2003 ("RCRA Civil Penalty
Policy"), which ~eflects the statutory penalty criteria and factors set forth at Section
3008(a)(3) and (g) of RCRA, 42 U.S.C. §§ 6928(a)(3) and (g); the appropriate Adjustm nt
ofCivil Monetarf Penalties for Inflation, pursuant to 40 C.F.R. Part 19, the December 9,
2008 memorand~m by EPA Assistant Administrator Grant Y. Nakayama, entitled
Amendments to fA's Civil Penalty Policies to Implement the 2008 Civil Monetary
Penalty Inflation Adjustment Rule (Effective January 12, 2009) (hereinafter "Nakayam
Memo"). Pursua t to 40 C.F.R. Part 19. and as provided in the Nakayama Memo:
penalties for RCr· violations occurring after January 30, 1997 were increased by 100/< to

12
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In Re: General Dynamics Jrdnance and Tactical Systems, Inc. Consent Agree ent
EPA Facility I.D. #PAD06 779627 Docket No. RCRA-03-2010- 326

account for infl tion, not to exceed a $27,500.00 per violation statutory maximum
penalty; penalti~s for RCRA violations occurring after March 15,2004 and before
January 13, 200? were increased by an additional 17.23% to account for subsequent
inflation, not to fxceed a $32,500.00 per violation statutory maximum penalty; and
penalties for RCRA violations occurring after January 12,2009 have been increased b
an additional 9.~3% to account for subsequent inflation, not to exceed a $37,500.00 pe
violation statutofY maximum penalty. Certain of the violations herein alleged occurre
between March 15, 2004 and January 13, 2009 and others occurred on or continued a r
January 12, 200I' The civil penalty settlement amount set forth in the preceding
Paragraph was dFtermined in consideration of the applicable penalty inflation
adjustments, puJsuant to 40 C.F.R. Part 19, and as provided in: the revised RCRA Civ
Penalty Policy ,atrices annexed to the January 11, 2005 memorandum by EPA Office of
Regulatory En£ rcement, RCRA Enforcement Division Director Rosemarie Kelly,
entitled Revised !,penalty Matrices for the RCRA Civil Penalty Policy; and the adjusted
RCRA Civil PeqaltY Policy Matrices annexed to November 16,2009 memorandum by
EPA Office ofqivil Enforcement, Waste and Chemical Enforcement Division Directo
Rosemarie A. Kelly, entitled Adjusted Penalty Matrices based on the 2008 Civil
Monetary penalr Inflation Adjustment Rule.

Payment of the tVil penalty as required by paragraph 78, above, shall be made by eith r
cashier's check, I ertified check, or electronic wire transfer, in the following manner:

a. All payrnents by Respondent shall reference Respondent's name and address, and
the Doctt Number of this action (Docket No. RCRA-03-2010-0326).

All checks shall be made payable to "United States Treasury".

All payJents made by check and sent by Regular U.S. Postal Service Mail shal
be addre1sed and mailed to:

UI.s. EPA
F},nes and Penalties
C ncinnati Finance Center
PO. Box 979077
sf. Louis, MO 63197-9000

cbntact: Craig Steffen - (513-487-2091)
Eric Volek - (513-487-2105)

13
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d. All payments made by check and sent by Private Commercial Overnight Deliv ry
service s~all be addressed and mailed to:

J.S. Environmental Protection Agency
Fines and Penalties

~
.s. Bank

I 05 Convention Plaza
ail Station SL-MO-C2GL

Sl. Louis, MO 63101

e.

g.

Craig Steffen - (513-487-2091)
Eric Volek - (513-487-2105)

Allpaym nts made by electronic wire transfer shall be directed to:

FLeral Reserve Bank of New York
ABA = 021030004

1

Apcount = 68010727
SWIFT address = FRNYUS33
31 Liberty Street
Nrw York, NY 10045

(Field Tag 4200 of the Fedwire message should read "D 68010727 Environmen al
protectiot Agency")

All electrf,nic payments made through the autom.ated clearinghouse (ACH), als
known as/Remittance Express (REX), shall be directed to:

U~ Treasury REX / Cashlink ACH Receiver
I

ABA = 051036706
Adcount No.: 310006. Environmental Protection Agency

I

CTX Format
Ttnsaction Code 22 - Checking

P~sicallocation of U.S. Treasury facility:
57PO Rivertech Court
Rirerdale, MD 20737

C9ntact for ACH: John Schmid - (202-874-7026)

14
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h. On-Line Payment Option:

WW.PAYGOV

Enter sf! 1.1 in the search field.

Consent Agree lent
Docket No. ReRA-03-l01O- 326

81.

82.

83.

Open fa and complete required fields.

At the time of p~yment, Respondent simultaneously shall send a notice of such payme t,
including a copy of the check or electronic fund transfer, as applicable, to:

Ms. Lydia Guy
RtgiOnal Hearing Clerk (3RCOO)
US. EPA, Region III
I 50 Arch Street
pi iladelphia, PA 19103-2029;

and

A.J. D'Angelo
S~. Assistant Regional Counsel (3RC30)
uk EPA, Region III
1650 Arch Street
Ptliladelphia, PA 19103-2029.

Pursuant to 31 uls.c. § 3717 and 40 C.F.R. § 13.II,EPA isentitied to assess interest,
administrative cobts and late payment penalties on outstanding debts owed to the Unite
States and a charh to cover the costs of processing and handling a delinquent claim, as
more fully described below. Accordingly, Respondent's failure to make timely payme
or to comply witH the conditions in this CAFO shall result in the assessment of late
payment ChargeSll.ncluding interest, penalties, and/or administrative costs of handling
delinquent debts.

Interest on the ci il penalty assessed in this CAFO will begin to accrue on the date that
true and correct c py of this CAFO is mailed or hand-delivered to Respondent. Howev r,
EPA will not seeU to recover interest on any amount of the civil penalty that is paid
within thirty (30) Icalendar days after the date on which such interest begins to accrue.
Interest will be as~essed at the rate of the United States Treasury tax and loan rate in
accordance with 0 C.F.R. § 13.II(a).

15
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84.

85.

86.

87.

The costs of the Agency's administrative handling of overdue debts will be charged
assessed monthl throughout the period a debt is overdue. 40 C.F.R. § 13.II(b).
Pursuant to Ap~fndix 2 of EPA's Resources Management Directives - Cash
Management, C~aptcr 9, EPA will assess a $15.00 administrative handling charge for
administrative co/sts on unpaid penalties for the first thirty (30) day period after the
payment is due and an additional $15.00 for each subsequent thirty (30) days the penal
remains unpaid.

/\ late payment enalty of six percent (6%) per year will be assessed monthly on any
portion of the ci il penalty that remains delinquent more than ninety (90) calendar day .
40 C.F.R. § 13.II(c). The late payment penalty on any portion of the civil penalty that
remains delinqu nt more than ninety days shall accrue from the first day payment is
delinquent. 31 .F.R. § 901.9(d).

The Respondent grees not to deduct for federal tax purposes the civil monetary penal
specified in this CAFO.

l V. CERTIFICATIONS

Respondent certi les to Complainant by its signature hereto, to the best of Respondent'
knowledge and bblief, that Respondent and the Facility currently arc in compliance wit
all relevant provikions of the federally-authorized PaHWR, and of RCRA Subtitle C, 4
U.S.C. §§ 6921-693ge, for which violations are alleged in this CA.

VI. OTHER APPLICABLE LAWS

88. Nothing in this C FO shall relieve Respondent of any duties otherwise imposed upon i'
by applicable fed ral, state, or local law and/or regulation.

VII. RESERVATION OF RIGHTS

89. This CAFO reso ves only EPA's claims for civil penalties for the specific violations
which are allegedl in this CA. Nothing in this CAFO shall be construed as limiting the
authority of EPA fO undertake action against any person, including the Respondent, in
response to any cfndition which EPA determines may present an imminent and
substantial cndanf1,ermenl to the public health, public weltare or the environment. In
addition, this settlFment is subject to all limitations on the scope of resolution and to the
reservation of rig~ts set forth in Section n.18(c) of the Consolidated Rules ofPractice.
Further, EPA reserves any rights and remedies available to it under RCRA, the
regulations promJIgated thereunder, and any other federal laws or regulations for which
EPA hasjurisdictlon, to enforce the provisions ofthis CAFO following its filing with th
Regional Hearing Clerk.
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Consent Agree ent
Docket No. RCBA-03-10lO- 316

90.

91.

VIII. FULL AND FINAL SATISFACTION

This settlement shall constitute full and final satisfaction of all civil claims for penalti
which Complaidant has under RCRA Section 3008(a) and (g), 42 U.S.C. § 6928(a) an
(g), for the violarions alleged in this CA.

I IX. PARTIES BOUND

This CA and the~ccompanYing FO shall apply to and be binding upon the EPA, the
Respondent, Re ondent's officers and directors (in their offIcial capacity) and
Respondent's su cessors and assigns. By his or her signature below. the person signin
this CA on behalf of Respondent acknowledges that he or she is fully authorized to ent r
into this CA and to bind the Respondent to the terms and conditions of this CA and the
accompanying F .

X. EFFECTIVE DATE

92. The effective dat of this CAFO is the date on which the FO is filed with the Regional
Hearing Clerk after signature by the Regional Administrator or his designee, the Regio al
Judicial Offlcer.

XI. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

93. This CAFO cons ,itutes the entire agreement and understanding of the parties concemin
settlement of the hbove-captioned action and there are no representations, warranties,
covenants, terms ~r conditions agreed upon between the parties other than those
expressed in this IAFO.

For Respondent General Dynamics Ordnance and Tactical Systems, Inc.:

Date: , 0/ /, 0 By: LieL~~
Del s. Darheron '---
Vice President and General Counsel
General Dynamics Ordnance and Tactical Systems, I
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I

Consent Agree nl
Dacket Na. RCRA-03-20lO- 26

For the Complainant: U. S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region I I

D'" 7/ryb o /
Q

By <ffiilA,~
7 I A. I. A elo

Sr. Assistant Regional Counsel

After reviewing Jhe EPA Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and other pertinent
matters, the Land and C~Iemicals Division ofthe United States Environmental Protection
Agency, Region III, rec mmends that the Regional Administrator, or his designee, the Region I
Judicial Officer, issue th attached FO.

Date: 1- ~ -(}9\OL
I
I

By:
A aham e as, Director
Land and Chemicals Division

18



UNITED STATES
. NVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

REGION III
1650 Arch Street

Philadelphia, Pennsylva.nia 19103 :, i-j!i A. fA

InRe:

I ~
General Dynamics Orpnance and )

Tactical Systems, 1c. )
11399 16th Court No h )
Suite 200 )

St. petersbUrg~I::i:t:;~:. ~

General Dynamics ~rdnance and ~
Tactical Systems, Inc. )

200 E. High Street I )

Red Lion, Pennsyl'lania 17356-0127 )
RCRA Identification # PAD069779627 )

I )

FACIL TY. )

Docket No. RCRA-03-2010-0326

Proceeding Under Section
3008(a) and (g) of the
Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act, as amended,
42 U.S.c. § 6928(a) and (g)

FINAL ORDER

Complainant, th Director of the Land and Chemicals Division, U.S. Environmental

Protection Agency, Re~ion III, and Respondent, General Dynamics Ordnance and Tactical

Systems, Inc., have exebuted a document entitled "Consent Agreement," which I hereby rati as

a Consent Agreement Jaccordance with the Consolidated Rules of Practice Governing the

Administrative Assessllent of Civil Penalties and the Revocation/Termination or Suspension f

Permits ("Consolidate Rules ofPractice"), 40 C.F.R. Part 22, with specific reference to

Sections 22.13(b) and 2.l8(b)(2) and (3). The terms of the foregoing Consent Agreement ar

accepted by the undersi ned and incorporated into this Final Order as if fully set forth at leng

herein.



In Ke: General Dynamics Ordnance and Tactical Systems, Inc. Consent Agree nt
EPA Facility I.D. #PAD069F79627 Docket No. KCKA-03-2010-

NOW, THEREFFRE, pursuant to Section 3008(a) and (g) of the Solid Waste Disposal

Act, commonly known ~s Resource Conservation and Recovery Act of 1976, as amended, inte

alia, by the Hazardous ahd Solid Waste Amendments of 1984 (collectively referred to hereina er

" "ReRA"), 42 U.8.0. f6928(.) Md (S), "d <ho C""."U"""d R.'""fp,"",,,, ""'" h.,m

determined, based on thl representations of the Parties set forth in the Consent Agreement, tha

the civil penalty ofThirt~ Eight Thousand Five Hundred Dollars ($38,500.00) agreed to therei

I

was based upon a consi~l:ration of the factors set forth in RCRA Section 3008(a), 42 U.S.c.

§ 6928(a), IT IS HERE~Y ORDERED that Respondent pay a civil monetary penalty of Thirty

Eight Thousand Five Huhdred Dollars ($38,500.00), in accordance with the provisions of the

foregoing Consent AgrJment, and comply timely with each of the additional terms and
I

conditions thereof. I

The effective datl of the foregoing Consent Agreement and this Final Order is the date n

which this Final OrderJfiled with the Regional Hearing Clerk.

7/o~910 f­
I

~[, .-J
ReI; SlU-ajian
Regional Judicial Officer
U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, Region II



UNITED STATES
ItNVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION AGENCY

I REGION III
1650 Arch Street

Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19103

In Re: I ~

General Dynamics Or~nance and )
Tactical Systems, I~c. )

11399 16th Court North )
Suite 200 I )

St. Petersburg, FlOridj 33716 ~

RESPONDENT. )

General Dynamics ~rdnance and ~
Tactical Systems )

200 E. High Street; )
Red Lion, Pennsyl ania 17356-0127 )
RCRA Identificati n # PAD069779627 ~

Docket No. RCRA-03-2010-0326

Proceeding Under Section
3008(a) and (g) of the
Resource Conservation and
Recovery Act, as amended,
42 U.S.C. § 6928(a) and (g)

FACILIifY. )

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

•A.J. D'A elo (3 C30)
Sr. Assistant Regional Counsel
U.S. EPA, Region III
1650 Arch Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-2029
Tel. (215) 814-2480

Date

JUL 1 2 2010

I hereby certify hat on the date set forth below, I caused to be hand-delivered to Ms.
Lydia Guy, Regional H~aring Clerk (3RCOO), U.S. EPA Region Ill, 1650 Arch Street, 5h Floo ,
Philadelphia, PA 19103l2029, the original and one copy ofthe foregoing Consent Agreement
and of the accompanyin~ Final Order. I further certify that on the date set forth below, I caus
true and correct copies qf the same to be mailed via Certified Mail Return Recei t Re ueste
Postage Prepaid, to the following persons at the following addresses:

Elaine B. Mills, ~SqUire
Associate Gener~1 Counsel
General Dynamilcs Ordnance and Tactical Systems, Inc.
11399 16th Court ~orth, Suite 200
St. Petersburg, Ijlonda 33716
(Article No. 7004 2890 0000 5075 7064)


